
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Peterborough, New Hampshire 

 
CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD 

 
Tuesday, July 24, 2007 

SAU Office 
 

Personnel Committee 
6:30 p.m. 

 
School Board 

7 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
 

Board         Administration 
Mary Allen, Stewart Brock,      Dick Bergeron, Supt. 
Ray Cote, Gail Cromwell,       Don Johnson, Asst. Supt. 
Butch Estey, Bart Goodeve,     Marian Alese, B.A. 
Dan Harper, Craig Hicks,       Linda Potter, SpEd. 
Arthur Knight, Mary Loftis,       Sue Copley, PES 
Bill McKinnon, Tom Welden     Sue Dell, CVHS 
         Dick Dunning, SMS 
Beth SanMartino, CVEA      Gib West, GBS 
         Jon Hall, CVHS 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:49 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
2.  Minutes (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 1-5) 
 a.  July 10, 2007 
Butch Estey moved to accept the minutes of the July 10, 2007 meeting.  Stewart Brock second.     
Unanimous. 
 
3.  Public Comment 
None. 
 
4.  Consent Agenda 
 a.  Monthly Events Calendar (pg. 6) 
The Education Committee will meet on August 13th.  Personnel and School Board will meet on 
August 21st.  The School Board Workshop will take place on August 29th.  Budget and Property will 
meet on August 20th.  Stewart asked if the workshop on the 29th could start at 6:30 rather than 
6:00.  Refreshments will begin at 6:00, work will begin at 6:30.   
 
 b.  New Hampshire Department of Education Key Messages – July 2007 (Pgs. 7-12) 
Dick Bergeron said that the Department of Education offers a wide range of communications.  It 
will be included into future agendas.  No action is required.   
 
 
 



 

 c.  New Hampshire Department of Education Superintendent’s Notices (Pgs. 13-21) 
Dick Bergeron said that this information will be included in future agendas as well.   
 
Gail asked if the AP testing listed on page 20 of tonight’s agenda attachment was the entire list.  
Gail said that she thinks that there are seven AP exams offered at the high school.  Gail asked the 
meaning of consent agenda.  Dick said that it provides information to Board members that do not 
require formal action.  Gail asked if it were possible to send the results of AP exams to her.  Sue 
Dell confirmed that she could provide this information. 
 
Marian introduced John Eldridge as the new facilities manager for the school district as well as 
Laurie Ritchie as District Manager of Aramark.   
 
 
5.  Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business 

a. Request to Accept a Gift or Donation (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 22-23) 
1. ConVal High School Golf Program has received from various donors a total of 

$650 in memory of Mr. Roger Whitcomb – Jon Hall 
Jon Hall said that Roger Whitcomb recently passed away.  His son contacted Jon and asked that 
in lieu of flowers donations be made to the Conval Golf program.  Jon said that what it will be used 
for will be determined.  In addition, he said that he will assure that it be put to good use and that 
Roger Whitcomb’s memory be preserved.   
Butch Estey asked if Jon had a trust fund.  Jon said that a trust fund was established at a prior 
point in time.  Jon said that the money is at the high school in the student activities fund. 
Marian said that it is called an athletic trust but it is not with the trustees.  She said that currently 
there is $1,200 dollars and that this donation would be added.  Butch added if this had to go back 
to the Supervisor of the Trustees.   
Butch asked what remained in the Athletic Fee account.  Marian responded that there was 
approximately $ 45,000.  Butch asked that the breakdown be provided.  Marian confirmed. 
 
Craig Hicks motioned to accept the donation with gratitude.  Arthur Knight second.  
Unanimous.   
 

b. Field Trip Proposals (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 24-30) 
1. Great Brook School - Grade 7 class would like to travel the Kieve-Wavus 

Foundation in Nobleboro Maine for one week for an intensive leadership 
experience – Gib West 

Gib West said that this comes out of work done with last year’s sixth grade.  He said that in the 
past the high school was told to “wait until they see a particular class get to the high school”.  He 
said that groups need to focus on working together.  Guidance staff came to Gib about grant 
possibilities to help get students off campus.  Gib said that a grant has been applied for to cover 
some of the cost of this opportunity.  Each student would put in some money, other funds would 
come from staff development money because staff would attend as well.  Gib said that if funding is 
obtained, it is his hope to take this trip in October.  Eighth grade teachers will attend as well to 
have the opportunity to see the work being done.  Ninety-eight students would be impacted.  The 
group works exclusively with middle school students.   
Stewart Brock applauded Gib and his team for identifying issues and proposing a plan.  He asked 
about the individual person who doesn’t want to pay or feels their student doesn’t need it and how 
this might be addressed.   
Gib said that he cannot require students to attend.  He hopes that they are tied to the mission  
statement.  Individual scholarship funds can be addressed.  If grant money becomes available he 
 
 



 

 
wanted to be able to tell families about it so that the costs could be anticipated.  Gib said that a 
discussion with individual parents would take place to determine any objections.  Gib said that 
when writing the grant, it included that students would put in money as well.   
Mary Loftis asked when this would be announced to families.  Gib said that it would be announced 
as soon as grant monies are heard of.  A letter will be sent out as soon as he hears.  Mary Loftis 
supported this effort.   
Craig Hicks said that if we have a model that can support this change we should support it.   
Mary Allen said that it is a fabulous idea.  She hopes it works and that he gets 100% participation.  
She asked in the future what the upshot might be.   
Gib said that when you have a tough class it impacts the entire building.   
Mary Allen gave credit to the proactive stance.  Arthur Knight said that he too was on board. 
 
Craig Hicks motioned to allow the Great Brook class trip to Nobleboro Maine. Mary Allen 
second.  Unanimous.   
 

c. Personnel – (Please Bring Your Agenda With You) (Board Vote Required) 
Dick Bergeron shared an observation and a proposed solution.  He said that a past practice needs 
to be addressed.  For two decades, a $3,600 pay differential has been offered to teaching 
principals.  Teaching principals were not afforded the same differentials as teaching staff.  We 
have three teaching principals that this impacts.  He shares it as an observation.  The total cost of 
fixing this is $ 3,766 for one, $ 997 for the second, and $3,374 for the third.  He proposed that we 
hold harmless all other adjustments but that for these three individuals that they be entitled to this 
differential. 
Tom Welden said that when a new administrator came into the teaching principal position the 
adjustment was not maintained.  Tom said that he recommends this adjustment.   
Bart asked how this would be done.  Tom said that inside the budget there is money in the delta.   
Marian said that once they came on board they were placed on the teacher scale with the 
additional $ 3,600 for the differential.  The following year the percentage increase was based on 
the salary regardless of the additional education staff received. 
Stewart asked how it would not have affected all of the teaching principals.   
Dick speculated that over the two decades, there were opportunities to grant money for merit or 
performance.  The differential grew.  If you are a long-term teaching principal there were 
opportunities to surpass this differential.   
Gail said that the variety of salaries that we offer teaching principals astonishes her.  She asked if 
there was a separate pay schedule in other districts.   
Dick said that teaching principals are unique.  When looking at the variations of administration and 
the labels that exist, he would like to consider future standardizing as well as consider caps.   
Tom said that all of the contracts are being reviewed for standards.   
 
Tom asked that we begin with nominations for HES, CVHS as read by the chair.   
 
Dan Harper moved to accept the nominations of Jean Robins as first grade teacher at HES 
as well as Carol Ann Mascola as HES Kindergarten teacher, Mary Goldthwaite, CVHS Art 
teacher, and Julie Murphy as Special Education teacher.    Craig Hicks second.  Unanimous. 
 
Dan Harper moved to accept all of the co-curricular nominations included in tonight’s 
packet.  Stewart Brock second.  Unanimous. 
 
Dan Harper moved to accept the resignations of Cynthia Ewing, Ruth Mares, Michael Conley 
at CVHS and Nancy Cook at GBS.  Stewart Brock second.  Unanimous.   
 



 

 
Dan Harper motioned to accept the retirement of Pamela Berry at Temple with best wishes 
and gratitude.  Stewart Brock second.  Unanimous. 
 
Dan Harper motioned to accept the staff reorganization at the SAU.  Craig Hicks second. 
Arthur Knight voted against the reorganization.  All else in favor. 
 
Craig Hicks moved to accept the HR Director position and job description.  Stewart Brock 
second.  Unanimous. 
 
Craig Hicks moved to adjust teaching principal’s salaries.  Mary Allen second.  Unanimous.   
 
 

d.  Administrator Authorization to Sign State Department of Education OBM Forms 1, 
3 and 4 (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 31-32) 

Craig Hicks motioned to authorize the administrator to sign the OBM Form 1, 3, and 4. 
Stewart Brock second.  Unanimous. 

 
 

6.  Board Sub-Committee Reports 
a. Education 

Education Committee will meet on the August 13th. 
 

b. Budget and Property 
Budget & Property will meet on August 20th. 
 

c. Personnel 
Personnel will meet on August 21st at 6:30. 
 

d. Communications 
Stewart said that Communications met last night and will not meet in August.  They are moving on 
with the Communications plan which will be done by the end of July.  Stewart passed around a list 
for Board members to list the town paper that exists in each of their perspective towns.     
 

e. Drug Committee – Butch Estey and Bart Goodeve 
Butch said that the committee will meet next on Thursday, August 2nd at 7:00.  The middle school 
policy will be reviewed.   
 

f. Technology Committee – Ray Cote and Dick Bergeron 
Dick Bergeron said that he was invited to visit GBS to hear a possible solution in this school.  It is 
an economic solution that uses existing software and hardware to our advantage.   
Ray Cote said that the concept of “Thin Client” is that you have a powerful machine with terminals.  
There are advantages.  It removes you from the rat race of not having powerful machines, nor do 
they need to be patched all the time.  The GBS Tech Coordinator is trying to reduce the mix of 
technology in the building.  A proposal has not yet been seen.  It is an interesting approach to 
using all of the current technology.   
Gib said that kids change a lot of the icons and screens.  This will no longer be possible.  It is fast.   
Beth San Martino said that machines have various operating systems.  To have the ability to have 
the whole school on one system is an advantage.   
Ray said that 50 clients on a single server can exist.   
 
 



 

 
Gib said that this would exist for the student platform only.  Ray added that remote access might 
be a possibility. 
Mary Allen asked if it would work with a laptop.  Ray confirmed that it can.   
 
7.  Old Business 
None. 
 
8.  New Business 
 a.  School Bus Update – Marian Alese  
Marian distributed a memo about changes at Goffstown Truck (See attachment # 1).  Marian said 
that changes in personnel at the terminal will take place as well.  Marian said that she met with 
Mike Kennedy to discuss diesel purchases.  She is in the process of calculating the differential in 
the cost of fuel for the added cost  in drops because the building was not in place when being 
constructed.  In addition, potential route changes were discussed.  Marian contacted the Town of 
Dublin and FEMA to cover additional transportation expenses in Dublin due to flooding.  Two high 
school students are affected by this change.   
In addition, the construction of the bus terminal was delayed but is now going full force. 
Craig asked about changing the fuel requirement.  Marian said that there is the possibility that 
because we are purchasing the diesel and they are using it that it might be an issue.  Also, Marian 
said that she has no control over what is being used at the terminal.   
Craig suggested that a bill be sent to the Town of Dublin for the costs associated with the bridge 
wash out to make a point.   
Arthur Knight said that on another note, Gillis Hill Road is a dirt road that has become an issue for 
one family.  The road becomes impassable according to the bus company.  Reversing the route 
was proposed.   
Marian said that the Town Of Bennington has sent a letter requesting that Gillis Hill Road be 
incorporated into the route. 
Mary Allen said that she hopes that we seriously look at bio-diesel.  Marian said that Goffstown 
Truck is not sure if we would save as much as we would if we shortened routes.  Bio-diesel is a bit 
more expensive and has maintenance issues.  She said that apparently much maintenance is 
required with the filters both on the bus and at the station.   
Mary said that schools in Nashua have busses on bio-diesel.  It was thought not.   
Tom explained that this discussion is taking place with the Selectmen.   
Ray said that bio-diesel gels differently.  Vehicles end up not moving in the middle of the route.  In 
addition, it depends on where the fuel comes from.  Ray said that we need to consider shortening 
routes.  Mary said that everything that we do is important.   
Craig said that when we bid the bus contract we were hoping to better fuel consumption and we 
have.   
 
 b.  Emotional Support Program Update – Linda Potter 
Linda Potter distributed a history of the proposal to move Alternative Education students off-site. 
(See Attachment # 2)  She said that she met with the fire inspector.  The building is zoned multi-
purpose.  There is a state variance that states that once you put an educational opportunity into a 
building that it is the only one that can remain.  A variance was thought of.  It is almost impossible 
to obtain.  Portable classrooms were discussed.  Costs were pursued.  Quotes were obtained.  
Linda said that costs include bathrooms.  Linda recommended that the company Schiavi be 
contracted with for a period of two years for cost savings.  A permanent sight can be sought.  The 
staff is excited to have administrative support.  Students can still walk in and out of the building.   
Linda said costs for site prep were addressed.  Linda said that she is looking for the Boards 
approval to pursue the two year lease. 
 



 

 
Bart asked about the tuition savings.  Linda said that she would be currently bringing one student 
back into district.   
Tom said that the building will go on the slap where the shed was removed.   
Mary Loftis said that the original objective was to move off site.  She asked if it will be off-site 
enough.  Linda said that students that are able to access the general population will do so and 
those that are not able to will not.   
Butch asked if this involved any additional staff.  Linda said that it did not.   
Craig said that he agrees with Linda’s goal of doing the two year lease.  There are one time 
expenses that would make the two year lease more advantageous.   
Dick Bergeron said that he admires Linda’s efforts in her ability to create a solution which meets 
our needs and gives us time to come up with a further solution.   
Stewart asked if this was for this upcoming year and asked where the funding comes from.  Linda 
said that she budgeted $19,000 and will not have to pay out of district tuition for the one student 
being brought back into district.   
 
Butch Estey moved to accept Linda Potter’s proposal to bring a portable classroom to 
serve the Alternative Education purposes for a period of two years.  Craig Hicks second the 
proposal.  Unanimous.     
 
Craig said that both Tom Weeks and Fire Chief Lennox as well as Peter Brown were excellent in 
helping find alternatives.  They helped very quickly and nicely.   
 
9.  Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required) 
Marian Alese certified that manifests 4 and 5 totaling $ 342,447.10 and Payroll 2 and 2.1 totaling $ 
697,693.47 have been reviewed by me and found to be proper charges against the Contoocook 
valley School District for goods and/or services received and have been properly processed prior 
to the submittal to the School Board.   
 
Craig Hicks moved to accept the approval of the manifests as read.  Stewart Brock second.  
Unanimous. 
  
10.  Non-Public Session:  RSA 91-A:3,IIc 
 a.  Negotiations 
Dan Harper motioned in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,IIc at 9:10 p.m. to enter non-public 
session for the purposes of negotiations and one legal comment.  Unanimous.   
 
Craig Hicks moved to exit non-public session.  Butch Estey second.  Unanimous. 
 
Butch Estey moved to seal the minutes of non-public session.  Craig Hicks second.  
Unanimous.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:50 p.m.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Marschok 
 
 


